

RECREATION FACILITY POLICIES

(April 2023)

 $\label{eq:middleton} \mbox{Middleton Community Development District} - \mbox{A} \\ \mbox{984 Old Mill Run} \\ \mbox{The Villages, Florida } 32162$

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	3
DEFINITIONS	3
SECURITY ACCESS CARDS	3
GUEST POLICIES	4
GENERAL RECREATION FACILITY PROVISIONS	4
LOSS OR DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY OR INSTANCES OF PERSONAL INJURY	6
SERVICE ANIMAL POLICY	6
MIDDLETON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – A RECREATION FACILITY USAGE POLICY	.6
SWIMMING POOL RULES	.7
SWIMMING POOL THUNDERSTORM POLICY	.8
OUTDOOR FITNESS PARK POLICIES	.8
TENNIS AND PICKLEBALL FACILITY POLICIES	9
TENNIS AND PICKLEBALL COURTS: THUNDERSTORM POLICY	.10
PARK AND TRIAL POLICIES	.10
FISHING AND KAYAKING POLICY	.12
DOG PARK POLICY	.13
SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES	.13
INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY	.15
EXHIBIT "1" - RELEASE OF LIABILITY	16

INTRODUCTION

The Middleton Community Development District – A Board of Supervisors, the Facility Manager and its staff shall have full authority to enforce these policies. However, the Facility Manager shall have the authority to waive strict application of any of these Policies when prudent, necessary, or in the best interest of the District and its Residents. Such a temporary waiver of any policy by the Facility Manager shall not constitute a continuous, ongoing waiver of said policy, and the Facility Manager reserves the right to enforce all of these polices at any time he or she sees fit.

DEFINITIONS

- "Recreation Facility" shall mean the properties and areas owned by the District, intended for recreational use, including, but not limited to, the pool, tennis and pickleball courts, fitness park, park and trail area, and dog park, together with its appurtenant facilities and areas.
- "Recreation Facility Policies" or "Policies" shall mean these Recreation Facility Policies of Middleton Community Development District A, as amended from time to time.
- **"Board of Supervisors"** or **"Board"** shall mean the Middleton Community Development District A's Board of Supervisors.
 - "District" shall mean the Middleton Community Development District A.
- **"District Manager"** shall mean the district manager for Village Center Community Development District and his/her designees.
- **"Facility Manager"** shall mean Village Center Community Development District, including its employees, staff and agents, contracted by the District to manage the Recreation Facility.
 - "Guest" shall mean any person who is invited to use the Recreation Facility by a Resident.
- "Patron" or "Patrons" shall mean Residents and Guests who are eighteen (18) years of age and older.
- "Resident" shall mean any person, spouse or registered domestic partner of a person or family owning property within the Middleton Community Development District A.

SECURITY ACCESS CARDS

Security access cards will be issued to District Residents to provide Residents with District identification and to provide Residents with access to Recreation Facilities. Resident ID cards may be accessed through the MyMiddleton phone application, free of charge. Resident ID cards may also be printed with the consent of a District homeowner for a fee established by the District by separate Resolution. The following apply to Resident ID cards:

- 1. Security access cards may be issued to all members of each Resident's household. However, security access cards for members of Resident household age 12 and up are eligible for a Resident ID with the permission of the homeowner. The homeowner must be the legal guardian if authorizing a minor Resident ID and must provide the following:
 - Birth certificate of the minor or custody paperwork for minors.
 - For adults 18 and over, each requesting a Resident ID must show proof of residency (driver's license or state identification with a District address).
- 2. Residents will be required to sign a waiver of liability before using District Recreation Facilities. By using District Recreation Facilities, Residents are agreeing to be responsible for themselves as well as any Guests accompanying the Resident.
- 3. Patrons may be required to present Resident ID cards upon request by staff at the Recreation Facility.

GUEST POLICIES

- 1. All Guests must be accompanied by a District Resident.
- 2. Residents who accompany a Guest are responsible for any and all actions taken by such Guest. Violation by a Guest of any of these Policies as set forth by the District could result in loss of the privileges and/or membership of that Resident.

GENERAL RECREATION FACILITY PROVISIONS

- 1. The Board reserves the right to amend, modify, or delete, in part or in their entirety, these Policies at a duly noticed Board meeting. However, in order to change or modify rates or fees beyond any increases or modifications that may be specifically allowed for by the District's rules and regulations, the Board must hold a duly-noticed public hearing on said rates and fees.
- 2. Residents may be required to present their ID cards in order to gain access to the Recreation Facility.
- 3. All hours of operation, including holiday schedules, of the Recreation Facility will be established by the District and Facility Manager.
- 4. Dogs and all other pets (with the exception of service animals) are not permitted in the Recreation Facility, except for the following locations:
 - a. Dog park
 - b. Park and Trails
 - In the event a special event is held, as previously approved by the Facility Manager, and dogs are permitted at the Recreation Facility as part of the special event, they must be leashed. Patrons are responsible for picking up after all pets and disposing of any waste in a designated pet waste receptacle or an outdoor dumpster as a courtesy to residents.
- 5. Vehicles must be parked in designated areas. Vehicles should not be parked on grass lawns, in any way which blocks the normal flow of traffic, or in any way that limits the ability of emergency service workers to respond to situations. The Facility Manager reserves the right to waive this parking restriction in the event overflow parking is needed for a large event.
- 6. Fireworks of any kind are not permitted anywhere at or in the Recreation Facility or adjacent areas; however, notwithstanding this general prohibition, the Board may approve the use of fireworks over a body of water.

- 7. Only employees, contractors or employees of the Facility Manager are allowed in the service areas of the Recreation Facility.
- 8. All lost or stolen Security access cards should be reported immediately to the Facility Manager's office. A fee will be assessed for any replacement cards as set forth herein.
- 9. Smoking is not permitted at the Recreation Facility.
- 10. Disregard for rules or policies may result in expulsion from the Recreation Facility and/or loss of Recreation Facility privileges in accordance with the procedures set forth herein. Rules that are posted in the appropriate area must be observed.
- 11. Patrons shall treat all staff members with courtesy and respect.
- 12. Off-road motorbikes/vehicles are prohibited on all property owned, maintained and operated by the District including, but not limited to, the Recreation Facility.
- 13. Performances at the Recreation Facility, including those by outside entertainers, must be approved in advance by the Facility Manager.
- 14. Commercial advertisements shall not be posted or circulated in the Recreation Facility. Petitions, posters or promotional material shall not be originated, solicited, circulated or posted on Recreation Facility property unless approved in writing by the Facility Manager.
- 15. The Recreation Facility shall not be used for commercial purposes without written permission from the Facility Manager and the District Manager. The term "commercial purposes" shall mean those activities which involve, in any way, the provision of goods or services for compensation or advertising.
- 16. Firearms or any other weapons are prohibited in the Recreation Facility and as otherwise prohibited in the Recreation Facility in accordance with Florida law.
- 17. The Facility Manager reserves the right to authorize all programs and activities, including the number of participants, usage of equipment and supplies, facility reservations, etc., at the Recreation Facility, except usage and rental fees that have been established by the Board. The Facility Manager also has the right to authorize management-sponsored events and programs to better serve the Patrons, and to reserve any Recreation Facility for said events (if the schedule permits) and to collect revenue for those services provided. This includes, but is not limited to, various athletic events, cultural programs and social events. Should the District be entitled to any of these revenues based on its established rental or usage fees or any contractual obligation, the Facility Manager will be required to compensate the District accordingly.
- 18. Loitering (the offense of standing idly or prowling in a place, at a time or in a manner not usual for law-abiding individuals, under circumstances that warrant a justifiable and reasonable alarm or immediate concern for the safety of persons or property in the vicinity) is not permitted at the Recreation Facility.
- 19. All Patrons shall abide by and comply with any and all federal, state and local laws and ordinances while present at or utilizing the Recreation Facility, and shall ensure that any minor for whom they are responsible also complies with the same.
- 20. There shall be no overnight parking in the Recreation Facility parking lot.
- 21. Golf cars must be parked in spaces designated for golf car parking. Additionally, any golf cars operating on District property shall be operated in strict accordance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws governing such use.
- 22. ALL UNAUTHORIZED PERSONS ARE CONSIDERED TRESPASSERS AND MAY BE PROSECUTED AS SUCH UNDER FLORIDA LAW.

LOSS OR DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY OR INSTANCES OF PERSONAL INJURY

- 1. Each Patron assumes sole responsibility for his or her property. The District and its contractors shall not be responsible for the loss or damage to any private property used or stored on or in the Recreation Facility.
- 2. Patrons shall be liable for any property damage and/or personal injury at the Recreation Facility, or at any activity or function operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the District or its contractors, which is caused by the Patron or the Patron's guests or family member(s). The District reserves the right to pursue any and all legal and equitable measures necessary to remedy any losses it suffers due to property damage or personal injury caused by a Patron or the Patron's family member(s).
- 3. Any Patron or other person who, in any manner, makes use of or accepts the use of any apparatus, appliance, facility, privilege or service whatsoever owned, leased, or operated by the District or its contractors, or who engages in any contest, game, function, exercise, competition or other activity operated, organized, arranged, or sponsored by the District, either on or off the Recreation Facility's premises, shall do so at his or her own risk, and shall hold the Recreation Facility's owners, the District, the Board of Supervisors, District employees, District representatives, District contractors, and District agents, harmless from any and all loss, cost, claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by him or her, resulting therefrom and/or from any act of omission of the District, or its respective operators, supervisors, employees, representatives, contractors or agents. Any Patron shall have, owe, and perform the same obligation to the District and their respective operators, supervisors, employees, representatives, contractors, and agents hereunder with respect to any loss, cost, claim, injury, damage, or liability sustained or incurred by any family member of such Patron.

SERVICE ANIMAL POLICY

Dogs or other pets (with the exception of "Service Animal(s)" trained to do work or perform tasks for an individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or other mental disability) are not permitted within any District-owned public accommodations including, but not limited to, the Recreation Facility. A Service Animal must be kept under the control of its handler by leash or harness, unless doing so interferes with the Service Animal's work or tasks or the individual's disability prevents doing so. The District may remove the Service Animal under the following conditions:

- If the Service Animal is out of control and the handler does not take effective measures to control it.
- If the Service Animal is not housebroken.
- If the Service Animal's behavior poses a direct threat to the health and safety of others.

MIDDLETON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – A RECREATION FACILITY USAGE POLICY

All Patrons using the Recreation Facility are expected to conduct themselves in a responsible, courteous, and safe manner, in compliance with all District policies and rules governing the

Recreation Facility. Violation of the District's Policies and/or misuse or destruction of Recreation Facility equipment may result in the suspension or termination of District Recreation Facility privileges with respect to the offending Patron or Guest in accordance with District Policies set forth herein.

- 1. *Hours*: The Recreation Facility is available for use by Patrons during normal operating hours to be established and posted by the District and Facility Manager.
- 2. *Emergencies*: After contacting 911 Emergency Services if required, all emergencies and injuries must be reported to the District Manager at (352) 751-3939.
- 3. *District Equipment*: Any Patron utilizing District equipment is responsible for said equipment. If, as a result of the use of the equipment it is damaged, missing pieces or is in worse condition than when it was when usage began, that Patron will be responsible to the District for any cost associated with repair or replacement of the equipment.

Please note that the facilities at the Recreation Facility are unsupervised facilities. Persons using the Recreation Facility do so at their own risk. Facility Manager's staff members are not present to provide personal training, exercise consultation or athletic instruction, unless otherwise noted, to Patrons. Persons interested in using the Recreation Facility are encouraged to consult with a physician prior to commencing a physical fitness program.

SWIMMING POOL RULES

NO LIFEGUARD ON DUTY – SWIM AT YOUR OWN RISK

- 1. At any given time, a Resident may allow up to five (5) Guests to the swimming pool (unless a greater number of guests has been approved by the Facility Manager).
- 2. Guests under sixteen (16) years of age must be accompanied at all times by a parent or adult Patron eighteen (18) years of age or older, during usage of the pool facility.
- 3. No pushing, running, throwing any item or other horseplay is allowed in the pool or on the pool deck area.
- 4. Diving is prohibited.
- 5. Radios, tape players, CD players, MP3 players, televisions or other electronic devices used to play music or other forms of entertainment are not permitted unless they are personal units equipped with headphones or for scheduled activities such as water aerobics classes.
- 6. Swimming is permitted only during designated hours as posted at the pool, and such hours are subject to change at the discretion of Facility Manager. Lifeguards are NOT on duty on a regular basis, if at all. Patrons swim at their own risk and must adhere to swimming pool rules at all times.
- 7. Showers are required before entering the pool.
- 8. Glass containers are prohibited.
- 9. Children under three (3) years of age, and those who are not reliably toilet trained, must wear rubber lined swim diapers, as well as a swimsuit over the swim diaper, to reduce the health risks associated with human waste in the swimming pool/deck area.
- 10. Play equipment, such as floats, rafts, snorkels, dive sticks, flotation devices and other recreational items such as balls and pool toys must meet with facility staff approval. The facility reserves the right to discontinue usage of such play equipment during times of peak or scheduled activity at the pool, or if the equipment causes a safety concern or annoyance to other users of the facility.

- 11. Pool availability may be limited or rotated in order to facilitate maintenance of the facility. Depending upon usage, the pool may be closed for various periods of time to facilitate maintenance and to maintain health code regulations.
- 12. Pets (except service dogs), bicycles, skateboards, roller blades, scooters and golf cars are prohibited on the pool deck area inside any Recreation Facility gates at any time.
- 13. The Facility Manager reserves the right to authorize all programs and activities (including the number of participants, equipment and supplies usage, etc.) conducted at the pool, including swim lessons and aquatic/recreational programs.
- 14. Any person swimming during non-posted swimming hours may be suspended or terminated from using the facility.
- 15. Proper swim attire (no cutoffs) must be worn in the pool.
- 16. No chewing gum is permitted in the pool or on the pool deck area.
- 17. For the comfort of others, the changing of diapers or clothes is not allowed poolside.
- 18. No one shall pollute the pool. Anyone who pollutes the pool will be liable for any costs incurred in treating and reopening the pool.
- 19. Radio controlled water craft are not allowed in the pool or the pool area.
- 20. Pool entrances must be kept clear at all times.
- 21. No swinging on ladders, fences, or railings is allowed.
- 22. Pool furniture is not to be removed from the pool area.
- 23. Loud, profane, or abusive language is prohibited.
- 24. No physical or verbal abuse will be tolerated.
- 25. The District is not responsible for lost or stolen items.
- 26. Chemicals used in the pool/spa may affect certain hair or fabric colors. The District is not responsible for these effects.

SWIMMING POOL THUNDERSTORM POLICY

The Facility Manager will control whether swimming is permitted in inclement weather, and the pool facility may be closed or opened at his or her discretion.

OUTDOOR FITNESS PARK POLICIES

All Patrons and guests using the Outdoor Fitness Park are expected to conduct themselves in a responsible, courteous, and safe manner in compliance with all policies and rules of the Middleton Community Development District – A governing the Recreation Facility. Disregard or violation of the District's Policies and rules and misuse or destruction of the Outdoor Fitness Park equipment may result in the suspension or termination of the Outdoor Fitness Park privileges.

Please note that the Outdoor Fitness Park is an unattended facility and persons using this facility do so at their own risk. Recreation Facility Staff are not present to provide personal training or exercise consultation to Patrons or guests. Persons interested in using the Outdoor Fitness Park are encouraged to consult with a physician prior to commencing a fitness program.

1. *Eligible Users*: Patrons eighteen (18) years of age and older are permitted to use the fitness park during designated operating hours. Residents and Guests under the age of twelve (12) years of age must be accompanied by someone sixteen (16) years of age or older.

- 2. *Beverages*: Beverages are permitted in the fitness park if contained in non- breakable containers with screw top or sealed lids. Alcoholic beverages are not permitted.
- 3. *Emergencies:* For all emergencies, call 911 Emergency Services immediately. All emergencies and injuries must also be reported to the District Manager at (352) 751-3939.
- 4. *Proper Attire:* Appropriate clothing and footwear must be worn at all times at the Outdoor Fitness Park. Appropriate attire includes t-shirts (tank tops), shorts, leotards, and/or sweat suits.
- 5. *Hours:* The Outdoor Fitness Park is available for use by Patrons and guests during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to dusk.
- 6. General Policies:
 - Patrons are responsible for checking fitness equipment for loose parts, breaks, cracks, or other conditions needing repair or attention.
 - Radios, tape players, MP3 players, CD players or other electronic devices used to play music
 or other forms of entertainment are not permitted unless they are personal units equipped
 with headphones.
 - Fitness equipment may not be removed from the fitness park.
 - Please limit use of cardiovascular equipment to thirty (30) minutes and step aside between multiple sets on fitness equipment if other people are waiting.
 - Please be respectful of others. Allow other Patrons to also use equipment.
 - Pets (with the exception of "Service Animals") are prohibited from the Fitness Park.

TENNIS AND PICKLEBALL FACILITY POLICIES

Please note the Tennis and Pickleball Facility is an unsupervised facility and persons using the facility do so at their own risk. Persons interested in using the Tennis and Pickleball Facility are encouraged to consult with a physician prior to using the facility.

As a courtesy to other Patrons, we ask that all players please recognize and abide by these rules and guidelines. Remember, not only are tennis and pickleball lifetime sports, they are also games of sportsmanship, proper etiquette, and fair play.

- 1. *Eligible Users*. Patrons and guests twelve (12) years of age and older are permitted to use the Tennis and Pickleball Facility during designated operating hours. Children who are under twelve(12) years of age may use the Tennis and Pickleball Facility only when accompanied by an adult aged sixteen (16) or older. The limit is three (3) Guests to a single court.
- 2. *Hours*. The Tennis and Pickleball Facility are available for use from 7 a.m. to dusk. The facilities may not be used after dark.
- 3. *Emergencies:* For all emergencies, call 911Emergency Services immediately. All emergencies and injuries must also be reported to the District Manager at (352) 751-3939.
- 4. *Proper Attire:* Proper tennis shoes and attire, as determined by the Facility Manager, are required at all times while on the courts.
- 5. Availability: The tennis and pickleball courts are available on a "first come, first served" basis. Each Patron and the Patron's guests are limited to the use of one (1) tennis or pickleball court for one-half hour when others are waiting. If you find it necessary to "bump" other players when it is your turn to play:
 - Never attempt to enter someone else's court before your turn.
 - Never enter the court or distract players while others are in the middle of a point or game.
 - Wait outside the entrance gate and politely inform the players that it is your turn.

• Allow players to finish out one more point, and then begin the player changeover for the court.

6. General Policies:

- Proper tennis and pickleball etiquette shall be adhered to at all times. The use of profanity or disruptive behavior is prohibited.
- Persons using the Tennis and Pickleball Facility must supply their own equipment (rackets, balls, etc.).
- The Tennis and Pickleball Facility is for the play of tennis and pickleball only. Pets (with the exception of "Service Animals"), roller blades, bikes, skates, skateboards, and scooters are prohibited from the tennis and pickleball facility.
- Beverages are permitted at the Tennis and Pickleball Facility if contained in non- breakable containers with screw top or sealed lids. No alcoholic beverages, glass or other breakable items are permitted on the tennis or pickleball courts.
- No chairs other than those provided by the District are permitted on the tennis or pickleball courts.
- No jumping over nets.
- Players must clean up after play. This includes "dead" balls, Styrofoam cups, plastic bottles, etc. The goal is to show common courtesy by leaving the court ready for play for Patrons who follow you.
- Court hazards or damages, such as popped line nails, need to be reported to the Facility Manager for repair.
- The tennis and pickleball courts may be reserved by the District for District-sponsored events or functions.

TENNIS AND PICKLEBALL COURTS: THUNDERSTORM POLICY

The Facility Manager, when present, will control whether tennis or pickleball is permitted in inclement weather, and the tennis and pickleball courts may be closed or opened at their discretion. Otherwise, play is at your own risk.

PARK AND TRAIL POLICIES

All Patrons and guests using the District Park or District Trails are expected to conduct themselves in a responsible, courteous, and safe manner in compliance with all policies and rules of the Middleton Community Development District – A governing the Recreation Facility. Disregard or violation of the District's Policies and rules and misuse or destruction of the Park, Park equipment, or District Trials may result in the suspension or termination of the District Park and Trail privileges.

Please note that the Park and Trails are unattended facilities and persons using these facilities do so at their own risk.

- 1. *Eligible Users*: Patrons twelve (12) years of age and older are permitted to use the trails during designated operating hours. Patrons under twelve (12) years of age must be accompanied by someone sixteen (16) years of age or older.
- 2. *Beverages*: Beverages are permitted in the park if contained in non- breakable containers with screw top or sealed lids. Alcoholic beverages are prohibited.
- 3. *Emergencies:* For all emergencies, call 911 Emergency Services immediately. All emergencies and injuries must also be reported to the District Manager at (352) 751-3939.

- 4. *Proper Attire:* Appropriate clothing and footwear must be worn at all times at the park. Appropriate attire includes t-shirts (tank tops), shorts, jeans, leotards, and/or sweat suits.
- 5. Hours: The Park is available for use by Patrons and guests during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to dusk.
- 6. General Park Policies:
 - Personal property of third parties should not be left unattended on, or within, District Park Facilities without the express approval and direction of the District Manager.
 - Application of fertilizers and pesticides or other chemical applications, except by District approved personnel, is prohibited.
 - Dumping yard waste or garbage or otherwise littering is prohibited.
 - Sleeping or reclining in a horizontal position on any park bench or table is prohibited.
 - Sleeping or otherwise remaining in any bushes, shrubs or other foliage is prohibited.
 - Sleeping at any time during any hours when the park is closed to the public use is prohibited.
 - Building or erecting any tent, hut, shanty, or other shelter, or engaging in any form of construction or digging is prohibited.
 - All pets must be on a leash or tether and under direct control at all times.
 - All pet owners shall clean up all pet waste and dispose of such waste in the proper trash receptacles.
 - Hunting is prohibited.
 - No person shall fish in any District ponds, lakes or other bodies of water where prohibited. Any and all fishing shall be catch and release.
 - Swimming and diving is prohibited.
 - No person shall bring into or operate any boat, yacht, cruiser, canoe, raft or other watercraft (except toys), regardless of means of propulsion, where prohibited.
 - All motorized watercraft (except toys) are prohibited. This prohibition is not intended to apply to authorized city, county or District maintenance personnel.
 - Use of motorized vehicles, including golf cars, other than on designated roads and in parking areas, is prohibited. This prohibition is not intended to apply to authorized city, county or District maintenance personnel.
 - Open flames are prohibited.
 - Plant removal is prohibited.
 - Disturbing animal habitat is prohibited.
 - Glass bottles, or glass containers of any kind, are prohibited.
 - Activities or uses that unnecessarily place the general public at risk and/or detract from the family orientation of the Park Facilities, such as foul language, horseplay, and other disturbing or dangerous behavior, are strictly prohibited.
 - Signs erected or affixed on District Park Facilities, except signs erected by a public authority for public purposes or subdivision signs authorized by the applicable local government authority, are prohibited.
 - Serving or distributing alcoholic beverages is prohibited.
 - Illegal drugs are prohibited.
 - Weapons are prohibited.
 - Special events or organized assemblies calculated or anticipated to attract at any one time the attendance or attention of more than ten (10) people are prohibited. This prohibition is not intended to apply to unorganized or spontaneous gatherings.

7. General Trail Policies:

Bikes, skateboards, scooters and roller-skates are only allowed on the designated paths/trails
provided they are used in a careful and prudent manner and at a rate of speed no greater than
what is reasonable and proper under the conditions existing at the point of operation, taking

into account the amount and character of pedestrian traffic, grade, and width of the trail or public path, condition of surface, and observation of all traffic-control devices. Every person using wheeled transportation upon a trail or public path shall yield the right-of-way to any pedestrian.

- Cars, trucks, and similar vehicles are prohibited on trails, unless the vehicle is an approved District maintenance vehicle.
- No trash shall be deposited on the trails.
- Use of trails is at your own risk.
- Only use designated trails.
- All pets must be leashed at all times.
- Do not disturb the nature landscapes. Be cautious of plants and wildlife in their native habitat.
- The following are not permitted at any time:
 - o Horses
 - o Feeding animals
 - o Hunting
 - Camping
 - Cooking
 - Smoking
 - o Fires

FISHING AND KAYAKING POLICY

Patrons may fish from the banks of any District owned lake/retention pond within the Middleton Community Development District – A or by using a kayak.

- 1. Hours of Use -7:00 am dusk
- 2. Users are responsible for their own equipment
- 3. Do not disturb wildlife or vegetation
- 4. Do not trespass on private residential property

Fishing

- 1. *Eligible Users*: Patrons twelve (12) years of age and older are permitted to fish during designated operating hours. Patrons under twelve (12) years of age must be accompanied by someone sixteen (16) years of age or older.
- 2. Fisherman are required to comply with Federal, State, and Local Laws, Statutes and Ordinances.
- 3. Fish in only designated areas.

Kayaking

- 1. *Eligible Users*: Patrons sixteen (16) years of age and older are permitted to kayak during designated operating hours. Patrons under (16) years of age must be accompanied by someone eighteen (18) years of age or older.
- 2. Non-motorized vehicles only.
- 3. All users on the water must wear a USCG approved personal flotation device. Other gear may be required.

The District has a "catch and release" policy for all fish caught in these waters. No watercrafts of any kind are allowed in these bodies of water except for small remote-controlled boats intended for recreational purposes. Swimming is also prohibited in any of the waters.

DOG PARK POLICY

USE OF THE DOG PARK IS AT YOUR OWN RISK

Your voluntary use of the Dog Park evidences your waiver of any claims against the Middleton Community Development District – A resulting from activities occurring at the Dog Park. The Middleton Community Development District – A is not responsible for any injury or harm caused by use of the Dog Park.

- 1. The Dog Park is restricted to use only by Patrons and their guests.
- 2. Proper attire must be worn while at the Dog Park.
- 3. Dogs must be on leashes at all times, except within the Dog Park area.
- 4. Dogs must be accompanied by a handler who is sixteen (16) years old or older.
- 5. Dogs inside the Dog Park must be under voice control by their handler at all times. If voice control is not possible, do not enter the Dog Park.
- 6. Dog handler must have the leash with them at all times.
- 7. Dog handlers and owners are responsible for any injuries caused by any dog under their supervision.
- 8. Dogs may not be left unattended and must be within unobstructed sight of the dog handler.
- 9. Dogs must be vaccinated and wear a visible rabies and license tag at all times.
- 10. Limit two (2) dogs per Adult dog handler.
- 11. Puppies under four months of age should not enter the Dog Park.
- 12. Children under the age of twelve (12) are not permitted within the Dog Park area.
- 13. Persons older than twelve (12) years of age but under the age of sixteen (16) must be accompanied by an adult at all times.
- 14. Dog handlers are responsible for the behavior of their animals.
- 15. Aggressive dogs are not allowed in the Dog Park. Any dog showing signs of aggression should be removed from the Dog Park immediately.
- 16. Only dogs that are spayed or neutered are allowed in the Dog Park.
- 17. Human or dog food inside the Dog Park is prohibited.
- 18. Any dog toys inside the Dog Park are prohibited.
- 19. Dog handlers must clean up any dog droppings made by their pets.
- 20. Dog handlers must fill in any holes made by their pets.
- 21. Please do not brush or groom pets inside the Dog Park. The Dog Park is for play time.
- 22. The Dog Park is designated a "No Smoking" area.

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES

- **1. Introduction.** This rule addresses the suspension and termination of privileges to use Middleton Community Development District A's ("District") recreational facilities ("Facilities").
- **2. Violations.** The privileges of a patron of the Facilities, including resident owners and members of the households of any of the foregoing (collectively, "Patron"), to use the Facilities may be suspended or terminated if the Patron engages in any of the following behavior:

- a. Submits false information on any application for use of the Facilities.
- b. Permits the unauthorized use of an Recreation pass.
- c. Exhibits unsatisfactory behavior or appearance.
- d. Fails to pay fees owed to the District in a proper and timely manner.
- e. Fails to abide by any policies or rules established for the use of the Facilities.
- f. Treats the District's supervisors, staff, facility management, contractors, or other representatives, or other Patrons, in an unreasonable or abusive manner.
- g. Damages or destroys District property.
- h. Engages in conduct that is improper or likely to endanger the welfare, safety, harmony or reputation of the District, or its supervisors, staff, facility management, contractors, or other representatives, or other Patrons.
- **3. Reporting of Violations.** For all offenses outlined in Section 2 above, the District Manager or District Manager designee, shall create a written report of the incident, which report shall be signed by the offending Patron and the District Manager or District Manager designee, as the case may be, and kept on file by the District. If the offending Patron refuses to sign the incident report, it shall be kept on file by the District with a notation to that effect by the District Manager or District Manager designee, as the case may be.
- 4. Suspension by the District Manager or District Manager Designee / Appeal of Suspension. The District Manager, or the District Manager's designee, may at any time suspend a Patron's privileges to use the Facilities for committing any of the violations outlined in Section 2. Such suspension shall be for a maximum period of 30 consecutive days. In determining the length of any suspension, the District Manager, or District Manager designee, shall take into account the nature of the conduct and any prior violations. A Patron subject to a suspension under this Section 4 may appeal the suspension to the District's Board of Supervisors ("Board") by filing a written request for an appeal, which written request shall be immediately sent to the District's Chairperson. The filing of a request for an appeal shall not result in the stay of the suspension. The District shall consider the appeal at its next Board meeting and shall provide reasonable notice to the Patron of the Board meeting where the appeal will be considered. At that meeting, the Board shall allow the Patron to appear and present statements and/or evidence on the Patron's behalf, subject to any reasonable restrictions that the Board may impose. The Board may take any action deemed by it in its sole discretion to be appropriate under the circumstances, including affirming, overturning or otherwise modifying the suspension, to address the appeal and any violations outlined in Section 2. In determining the appropriate action to be taken, the Board shall take into account the nature of the violation and any prior violations.
- 5. Suspension or Termination by the Board. The District Manager, or the District Manager's designee, may recommend to the Board, or the Board on its own initiative may elect to consider, a suspension or termination of a Patron's privileges for committing any of the violations outlined in Section 2. At least 15 days prior to any Board meeting where a suspension or termination is to be considered under this Section, the District shall send written notice of the meeting by United States mail to the Patron's last known address. Upon prior written request submitted by the Patron to the District at least 5 days prior to the meeting, the Board shall allow the Patron to appear at the meeting and present statements and/or evidence on the Patron's behalf, subject to any reasonable restrictions that the Board may impose. The Board may take any action deemed by it in its sole discretion to be appropriate under the circumstances to address the violations outlined in Section 2, including suspension or permanent termination of a Patron's privileges to use the Facilities. In determining the appropriate action to be taken, the Board shall take into account the nature of the violation and any prior violations.

6. Trespass. If a Patron subject to a suspension or termination is found on the Recreation premises, such Patron will be subject to arrest for trespassing.

INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY

All Patrons using any Recreation Facility (or any part thereof) agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District, the Board, the District Manager, District Manager designee, and their respective employees, representatives, agents of each from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity, for injuries, death, property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the use of any Recreation Facility (or any part thereof).

All Patrons using any Recreation Facility agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District, the Board, the District Manager, District Manager designee, and their respective employees, representatives, agents from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by and person, corporation or other entity, for injuries, death, property damage of any nature, arising out of or in connection with, the use of any Recreation Facility and property, including litigation or any appellate proceeding with respect thereto. Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's sovereign immunity granted pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida Statues.

The District, the Board, the District Manager, District Manager designee, and their respective employees, representatives, agents shall not be liable for, and the Patron or Guest shall releases all claims for injury or damage to or loss of personal property or to the person, sustained by the user or any person claiming through the user resulting from any fire, accident, occurrence, theft or condition in or upon any Recreation Facility and property.

By using any Recreation Facility as identified in these Recreation Facility Policies, each person and Patron is deemed to have accepted any and all risks associated with said use and each person and Patron shall shall execute a complete release of liability releasing Middleton Community Development District – A from any and all liability in a form as provided in Exhibit "1" to these Recreation Facility Policies.

EXHIBIT "1" RELEASE OF LIABILITY



Application for Resident ID

Unconditional and Full General Release

"District") wh							sident of <i>Middl</i>	eion Co	minum	uy Develop	mem Disn	
"Policies"\ I	nich offers o	ertain R	Recrea	tion Fa	acilitie	s for n	ny use in accor-	dance w	ith the	Recreation	Facility P	olicies (the
							The Recreation					
					•	ide tha	t a Resident ID	may be	issued	to a memb	er of a resid	dent age 12
and up, with t	he permissi	on of the	home	eowne	r.							
	. • 6		1)			.1		C	. •			
							homeowner	of	the		located	at _
(address)			C 10	1.15			, T bers of my hous	he Vill	ages, F	L; 2) I am	the legal g	guardian of
children	between the	e ages of	f 12 ar	nd I / v	who ar	e mem	bers of my hous	sehold.				
using Recreat such supervisi to, and shall f the Resident I	ion Facilitie ion and secu follow, all P D cards and	es, will n rity as is olicies a l use of t	ot be s neces and pos he Re	superv sary fo sted ru creatio	rised by or my or ales whom Faci	y the Dehildren nen usi ilities, l	•	ored by Recreation On Facil	any secon Facilities. In	curity servi lities. My cl n considera	ce, and I m nildren shal tion of the	ust provide I be subject issuance of
							nal representat					
_	_				_		lease of the ow				-	-
							e Recreation				• •	
		_				•	sks of injury, v it is impossible		•			_
	•				•		it is impossible iry, and even	_			•	
			_			_	specifically agi				-	-
	_	_		•			r providing ser					
	•		_				Development D		-		• .	<u> </u>
	*		_			•	to as the "Re					•
							iates, represen					
							pation of my cl					
•			_		-	-	ause injury. T			_		
	-											n releasing
_	-			The to		_	ase is intended	to be a	s broa	u anu men	isive as per	n releasing d effective
Florida law,	anu n any		_		regoii	ng rele	ase is intended reason, the ba				_	n releasing d effective rmitted by
		portion	is he	ld inv	regoii alid fo	ng rele or any	ase is intended reason, the ba by me or childr	lance s	hould	continue ii	ı full legal	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and
effect. I agree	e to be resp	portion onsible f	is he	ld inv y dam	regoii alid fo age ca	ng rele or any nused b	reason, the ba	lance s	hould	continue ii	ı full legal	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and
effect. I agree with a Reside	e to be respond ent ID card	portion onsible f issued v	is he for an with n	ld inv y dam ny per	oregoin alid fon age ca missio	ng rele or any nused b on.	reason, the ba	llance s en whil	hould e prese	continue in ent at or us	n full legal ing a facilit	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and
effect. I agree with a Reside	e to be respond ent ID card	portion onsible f issued v	is he for an with n	ld inv y dam ny per	oregoinalid for alid for age carmission rety, a	ng rele or any nused to on. and I fro	reason, the ba by me or childr eely and volunta	llance s en whil	hould e prese	continue in ent at or us	n full legal ing a facilit	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and
effect. I agree with a Reside	e to be respond ent ID card	portion onsible f issued v	is he for an with n	ld inv y dam ny per	oregoinalid for alid	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro	reason, the bay me or childred and volunta	llance s en whil	hould e prese	continue in ent at or us	n full legal ing a facilit	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and
effect. I agree with a Reside	e to be respond ent ID card	portion onsible f issued v	is he for an with n	ld inv y dam ny per	oregoinalid for alid	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro	reason, the ba by me or childr eely and volunta	llance s en whil	hould e prese	continue in ent at or us	n full legal ing a facilit	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and
effect. I agree with a Reside I have read th	e to be respondent ID card	portion onsible f issued v agreeme	is he for an with n	ld inv y dam ny per its enti	oregoin alid for lage ca mission rety, a Min Par	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro nor Ch ent/Gu	reason, the bay me or childred and volunta	llance sen while	hould e prese	continue in the continue in th	n full legal ing a facilit ereby.	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and ty accessed
effect. I agree with a Reside I have read th	e to be respondent ID card the foregoing and and under	portion onsible i issued v agreeme	is he for an with n	Id inv y dam ny per its enti	oregoinalid for alid	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro nor Ch ent/Gu	reason, the bay me or childred and volunta aild Participant ardian Consent	llance sen while	hould e prese	continue in the continue in th	n full legal ing a facilit ereby.	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and ty accessed
effect. I agree with a Reside I have read th I have fully re	e to be respondent ID card the foregoing and and under	portion onsible i issued v agreeme	is he for an with n	Id inv y dam ny per its enti	oregoinalid for alid	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro nor Ch ent/Gu	reason, the bay me or childred and volunta aild Participant ardian Consent	llance sen while	hould e prese	continue in the continue in th	n full legal ing a facilit ereby.	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and ty accessed
effect. I agree with a Reside I have read th I have fully re	e to be respondent ID card the foregoing and and under	portion onsible i issued v agreeme	is he for an with n	Id inv y dam ny per its enti	oregoinalid for alid	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro nor Ch ent/Gu	reason, the bay me or childred and volunta aild Participant ardian Consent	llance sen while	hould e prese	continue in the continue in th	n full legal ing a facilit ereby.	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and ty accessed
effect. I agree with a Reside I have read th I have fully re	e to be respondent ID card the foregoing and and under	portion onsible i issued v agreeme	is he for an with n	Id inv y dam ny per its enti	oregoinalid for alid	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro nor Ch ent/Gu	reason, the bay me or childred and volunta aild Participant ardian Consent	llance sen while	hould e prese	continue in the continue in th	n full legal ing a facilit ereby.	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and ty accessed
effect. I agree with a Reside I have read th I have fully re shall apply to	e to be respondent ID card the foregoing and and under my child's	portion onsible to issued was agreement of R	is he for an with n ent in i	ld inv y dam ny per its enti egoing ion Fa	oregoinalid for alid	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro nor Ch ent/Gu	reason, the bar by me or childred and volunta ardian Consent understand and	arily int	hould e prese	continue in the continue in th	n full legal ing a facilit ereby.	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and ty accessed
effect. I agree with a Reside I have read th I have fully re	e to be respondent ID card the foregoing and and under my child's	portion onsible to issued was agreement of R	is he for an with n ent in i	ld inv y dam ny per its enti egoing ion Fa	oregoinalid for alid	ng rele or any nused b on. and I fro nor Ch ent/Gu	reason, the bar by me or childred and volunta ardian Consent understand and	llance sen while	hould e prese	continue in the continue in th	n full legal ing a facilit ereby.	n releasing d effective rmitted by force and ty accessed